
COUNTY COMMISSION
Ron Sellers
District 1
Member

Ron Hirst
District 2

Chair

Daniel P. Friesen
District 3

Vice-Chair

Courthouse
206 W. 1st Avenue

Hutchinson, KS 67501

AGENDA
Reno County Annex

Tuesday, June 8, 2021, 9:00 A.M.

I. Call to Order

II. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer

III. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair

IV. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda.
Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5 minutes per
item.

V. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda

VI. Consent Agenda
If any Commissioner would like further discussions or explanation of any item they may ask that it be removed from the
consent agenda for additional consideration.
A. Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units).
B. Minutes of Meeting for May 25, 2021.
C. Amendment Three to an Agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and Environment; and a Letter

of Intent for the Health Department’s Outreach, Prevention and Early Development Services (OPEI) (aka
Healthy Families Grant).

D. Copier Lease and Maintenance Program.
E. Reno/Kingman Fire District No 1 declination to participate in the Kingman County Amended Neighborhood

Revitalization Plan.
F. Flock Safety Contract for law enforcement cameras, alerts, and notifications.

i. Action – Motion to approve the Consent Agenda
Friesen Sellers Hirst

VII. Business Items
A. Discussion of setting priorities for fire districts by Adam Weishaar, Emergency Management Director.
B. Benefit Consultant/Broker for Reno County by Helen Foster, Human Resources Director, representing

the Benefits Committee.
C. Discussion regarding expansion to five-member board of commission for Reno County.

VIII. County Administrator Report
A. Department Reports
B. Financial Reports



IX. County Commission Report/Comments

X. Executive Session
A. Non-Elected Personnel for 30 minutes with no legal binding action to take place.

XI. Adjournment



Revised: 03/10/2021 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
 

AGENDA DATE 

 

June 8, 2021 

 

PRESENTED BY 

 

Cindy Martin, Minutes Clerk 

 

AGENDA TOPIC 

 

Clerk’s Office requesting approval for May 25th minutes 

 

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC 

 

ALL OPTIONS 

n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION/REQUEST 

Approval by the Board of Commissioners 

 

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

 

 

May 25th, 2021   

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #6B



May 25, 2021 

Reno County Courthouse 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held the agenda 

session with Chairman Ron Hirst, Commissioner Daniel Friesen and 

Commissioner Ron Sellers, County Administrator Randy Partington, 

County Counselor Joe O’Sullivan, and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, 

present.        

 

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance followed by 

a short sectarian prayer led by Pastor Henry Blickhahn, Our 

Redeemer Lutheran Church. 

 

Commissioner Hirst thanked the Sheriff’s Office for 

organizing the Peace Officers memorial service and Hutchinson 

Police Department for participating in the service for fallen 

officers.  He also corrected a statement regarding the club that 

provided meals for Peace Officers Day.   

 

There were no public comments.  

 

Mr. Friesen made a motion to table item 7A the Commercial 

Wind Energy Conversion Systems Proposed Regulations stating it 

should not be on the agenda today, Mr. Sellers seconded to hear 

Mr. Friesen’s reason.  The Board discussed item 7A since it was 

previously tabled for today from April 13, 2021.  Mr. Sellers 

thought maybe thirty days would be sufficient to put it back on 

the agenda stating it could not be indefinitely postponed.  Mr. 

Friesen thought the Commission was too far apart to have a 

discussion today.  Mr. Hirst made a motion to set a date for the 

next agenda meeting to discuss the proposed regulations, it 

failed for lack of a second.  Mr. Friesen requested his motion 

be read and voted; the motion was approved by a 2-1 vote with 

Mr. Hirst opposed.   

     

 There were additions to the agenda under business items: 

Public Works Director Mr. Brittain had a High-Risk Rural Road 

agreement and a Federal Aide for Construction/Engineering with 

Kirkham Michael.  Then adding under item 10 another executive 

session for acquisition of real estate. 

      

Mr. Sellers moved, seconded by Mr. Friesen, to approve the 

Consent Agenda consisting of 6A through 6C.  The Accounts Payable 

Ledger for claims payable on May 21st, 2021 of $598,871.36 and May 

28th, 2021 of $607,539.87 as presented.  Next item directs the 

chairman to sign minutes for April 13th, April 27th, also drafts of 



May 7th and May 11th, 2021 as submitted.  Resolution 2021-12; A 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A PERSONAL TRAINING AND FITNESS STUDIO ON A PARCEL 

LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, 

RANGE 4 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M. IN RENO COUNTY, KANSAS at 4516 N. Kent 

Road.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 3-0.       

 

Health Department Director Karla Nichols made a presentation 

to the Board updating them on the Health Departments projects, 

COVID-19, organization charts for what they cover and grants.  She 

brought the following staff with her Karen Hammersmith, Megan 

Gottschalk-Hammersmith, and Bethany Jantzen for questions.   

 

Public Works Director Don Brittain explained KDOT awarded a 

High-Risk Rural Road project for the low bid of $365,246 to CC & 

I Engineering, Inc. to work on signage east of K-14.  This is for 

the authority to award the High-Risk Rural Road Federal Fund Award 

Contract to CC & I Engineering, Inc.  He also related from KDOT 

that this is to approve and sign for Kirkham Michael to do the 

engineering inspection of this project.  Mr. Sellers moved, 

seconded by Mr. Friesen, to approve contracts as presented by Mr. 

Brittain and authorize signatures.  The motion was approved with 

a roll call vote of 3-0.         

 

Mr. Brittain also gave explanation on an agreement with the 

Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) for the construction of 

69th Avenue Bridge 26.70 as part of the off-system bridge program.  

This bridge is located two miles north and .5 miles west of 

Willowbrook stating that it is replacing a narrow six span steel 

beam bridge built in 1959. Reno County’s share is 20 percent 

estimated at $179,354.80 and all design cost of $75,645 with an 

approximate total $254,999.80.  KDOT’s share is 80 percent, with 

a total estimated project cost of $896,774 in fiscal year 2022.  

An agreement for Engineering Services with Kirkham Michael was 

approved and signed by the BOCC on April 13th, 2021.  Mr. Friesen 

moved, seconded by Mr. Sellers, to approve the agreement with KDOT 

for construction on the 69th Avenue Bridge as presented by Mr. 

Brittain.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 3-0.     

   

 County Administrator Randy Partington updated the Board:  

1) On how the $12 million CRF money was distributed.   
2) He and Mr. Sellers thought it beneficial to attend a 

meeting with American Rescue Plan group that would give 

suggestions from the community on how to spend the upcoming 

$12 million the county would be receiving.   

3) An email was received regarding the KAC Conference on 
October 18th thru 20th, 2021 in Overland Park.  He said four 



rooms were reserved for attendees.  He had not received an 

agenda yet for sessions. 

4) The Treasurer emailed with the sales tax amounts showing 
the numbers are ahead 113 percent of last year. 

5) Reminder June had three meetings, 8th, 22nd, and 29th and 
special meetings on July 6th and 7th for budgets. 

 

Mr. Friesen requested a standardized department report 

having a template for reporting. 

 

  Commissioner comments: 

 

 Mr. Sellers commented on the Tele Health for the Health 

Department.  He mentioned the meeting with American Rescue Plan 

to listen to community ideas.  He stated with the General 

Election coming up on November 2nd, 2021, he would like to 

discuss putting the addition of 2 more members to the Commission 

Board on the ballot.  He was concerned about the wind discussion 

supporting 45 to 60 days to move it forward placing it on the 

agenda again.   

  

 Mr. Friesen was frustrated with not being able to 

communicate with the other members between meetings regarding 

the wind regulations.  Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. 

Sellers, to set as a standing item on the agenda for discussion 

of a five-member commission discussion.  The motion was approved 

by a roll call vote of 3-0.  He also discussed a pay increase 

and a legal question on automatic aide from the Rural Fire 

District Chiefs from the Yoder meeting.  He said Mr. Weishaar 

spoke about a four-year planning session and the Fire Chiefs 

stepping up. Mr. Weishaar would be reporting next week on the 

meeting.   

   

 Mr. Hirst encouraged citizens in the townships to serve 

your community and sign up for elected positions.  He was 

disappointed to not discuss the wind regulations today.  He 

thought they needed to have an agreement and not wait and urged 

a discussion take place soon.   

 

 At 10:45 the meeting recessed for ten minutes. 

 

The meeting reconvened with all Commissioners, County 

Administrator Randy Partington, County Counselor Joe O’Sullivan, 

and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present. 

   

 At 10:55 Commissioner Hirst read the motion for the Board 

to recess into executive session for the purpose of preliminary 



discussions regarding the acquisition of real estate for a 

period of 15 minutes with no formal decision expected.  County 

Administrator Randy Partington and County Counselor Joe 

O’Sullivan to remain for the executive session at the conclusion 

of the session the Board will resume its regular session.  Mr. 

Sellers seconded, and the motion was approved with a roll call 

vote of 3-0.  

  

 At 11:12 Mr. Hirst moved for the Board to recess into 

Executive Session to discuss a personnel matter pertaining to a 

non-elected employee for a period not to exceed 30 minutes.  No 

formal decision is expected.  Requesting Human Resources 

Director Helen Foster, Randy Partington, and Joe O’Sullivan 

remain for the executive session seconded by Mr. Sellers.  The 

motion was approved by a roll call vote of 3-0.   

 

 At 11:42 Mr. Hirst moved, seconded by Mr. Sellers, to 

extend the executive session for 10 minutes more.  The motion 

was approved by a roll call vote of 3-0. 

 

 At 11:50 Mr. Hirst moved, seconded by Mr. Friesen, to 

recess into Executive Session to confer with the Board’s legal 

counsel on a privileged legal matter in the attorney/client 

relationship relating to contractual negotiations with the City 

of Hutchinson for a period of one hour with no formal decision 

expected.  Requesting Sheriff Campbell, Randy Partington, and 

Joe O’Sullivan remain.  At the conclusion of the Executive 

Session, the Board will return to regular session at which time 

the meeting would adjourn for the day. 

  

At 12:32 p.m. the meeting adjourned until 9:00 a.m. 

Tuesday, June 8, 2021.    

Approved: 

 

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

(ATTEST) 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 

 



Revised: 03/10/2021

AGENDA ITEM

AGENDA DATE June 8, 2021

PRESENTED BY Karla Nichols – Director, Reno County Health Department

AGENDA TOPIC Outreach, Prevention and Early Development Services (OPEI) (aka Healthy Families
Grant) - Letter of Intent and KDHE Amendment

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC

ALL OPTIONS
Options:
1: Sign the Letter of Intent and the Amendment Three as presented.
2: Sign the Letter of Intent and the Amendment Three for a lesser amount.

This will reduce the services currently being provided through this project.
3: Not sign the Letter of Intent and the Amendment Three –

Stop funding services in its current form. This could cause concerns for community partners who
work to provide as well as our community partners who fund the match funds for this project.

RECOMMENDATION/REQUEST
Reno County Health Department requests that the County approve the Letter of Intent and Amendment Three as
presented.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT
The Reno County Health Department has included the continuation of the funding and the amounts passed
through in the 2021 budget as well as the proposed 2022. There is a desire to continue this project in the future.
Although most of the funds under this program are passed through the department does retain an administration
percentage within the department.

The Reno County Health Department is the grant administrator for the passthrough of state and match funding
under the OPEI agreement. July1, 2021 will be the third year of the current working agreement with KDHE and
the State of Kansas which started on July 1, 2018.
The signing of the Letter of Intent and the Amendment Three will allow the current agreement and work within
the county with fund provided by this funding to continue. This funding provides funding for accredited and
evidence-based home visitor programs that target low-income families with pregnant women and/or children
from birth to age 3 (or age 5.)

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #6C



KDHE2019-066
AMENDMENT THREE

to the
KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

DIVISION OF HEALTH CARE FINANCE
the

RENO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
and the

RENO COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
for

Outreach, Prevention and Early Intervention Services

The above parties entered into an original contract in July 1, 2018 to develop, implement, and maintain a
voluntary program that provides outreach, prevention and early intervention services to new, low-income
parents and children with emphasis on adolescent and pregnant teen parents of at-risk infants in Reno,
Kansas.

I. The parties hereto agree to extend the original agreement from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.

II. The contractor will maintain accreditation with its choice of evidence-based home visitor programs
that target low-income families with pregnant women and children from birth to age 3 (or age 5).

III. Total funding for the period referenced above shall not exceed $320,000.00; said amount
comprising the County’s certified matching funds of $160,000.00 and the federal financial
participation amount of $160,000.00.

IV. All remaining terms and conditions of the original agreement and subsequent addenda shall remain
the same.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto affix their signatures to this Third Amendment.

RENO COUNTY

____________
Ron Hirst Date
Reno County Commission Chair

RENO COUNTY
HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Karla Nichols, Director Date
Reno County Health Department

KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND ENVIRONMENT

________________________________________ ______________
Lee A. Norman, M.D. Date
Secretary



June 8, 2021

Kansas Department of Health and Environment
900 SW Jackson, Room 900N
Topeka, KS  66612

To: Blake Weiter
Contracts and Procurement Manager

The Reno County Health Department wish to participate in the KDHE Healthy Families Outreach,
Prevention, and Early Intervention Program and understand that a match is required in order to
pull down federal funding for the program.  The source for matching dollars will be from the
Maternal Child Health Grant, United Way, grants from local foundations (Hutchinson Community
Foundation) and private donations. Reno County has adequate funding to provide up to $160,000
in matching dollars.

Sincerely,

Reno County Commission Chair

209 West 2nd Ave.
Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5232

(620) 694-2900
Fax (620) 694-2901

www.renogov.org/health



Revised: 03/10/2021

AGENDA ITEM

AGENDA DATE June 8, 2021

PRESENTED BY Randy Partington, County Administrator

AGENDA TOPIC Copier Lease/Maintenance Program

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC

ALL OPTIONS
1. Authorize the County Administrator and County Counselor to work with 360 Document Solutions for a

contract agreement to be signed by the County Administrator.
2. Direct the County Administrator and County Counselor to work with one of the other vendors who

submitted a proposal for the County Administrator to sign a contract agreement.
3. Return the agenda item to staff with recommendations to bring back to the board.

RECOMMENDATION/REQUEST
Option #1 – Authorize the County Administrator and County Counselor to work with 360 Document
Solutions for a contract agreement to be signed by the County Administrator.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT
360 Document Solutions’ proposal provides an estimated $12,400 per year reduction on our copier
lease/maintenance program.  Departments budget for and pay the cost of their respective copiers.

Reno County is currently contracted with Canon Solutions to provide copier lease and maintenance services for
35 machines located within 17 county departments and district court.  Our current contract with Canon Solutions
expires July 13, 2021. Departments were asked to review the current machines to determine if they could reduce
the number of copiers and advise of any changes they would like to make.  That resulted in reducing the overall
number of machines from 35 to 33; upgrading one black/white machine to a color machine; and upgrading one
black/white machine to include a larger paper deck.

Requests for Proposals were sent to nine copier vendors of which eight responded. Of the eight who responded,
360 Document Solutions provided the lowest proposal of $2,101.11 monthly lease fees for all 33 machines; and
click rate charges of $0.003 per black/white copy and $0.029 per color copy. 360 Document Solutions’ proposal
will save the county an estimated $12,400 per year over the current contract in place; and is approximately $6,800
less per year than the next lowest proposal.

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #6D



Reno County Copier Lease and Maintenance RFP Responses DUE: 5/14/2021

2020 b/w Copies 1,374,097 2020 Clr Copies: 418,641

Vendor
Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee All Units

Click
Charge for

B/W
(overage if
allowance

Click Charge
for Color

(overage if
allowance
program is

Proposed
Monthly

Maint Fee per
Unit

Toner
Included?  If
not, please

indicate cost

Itemized Billing
by machine and

Dept?
Annual

Lease Fee
2020 b/w

Copy Charge
2020 clr

Copy Charge

Total
annual est.
cost lease/

usage

360 Document Solutions $2,101.11 $0.00300 $0.029 $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea Not noted $25,213.32 $4,122.29 $12,140.59 $41,476.20

Image Quest $2,290.00 $0.00450 $0.035 $0.00 Not noted Not noted $27,480.00 $6,183.44 $14,652.44 $48,315.87

* Konica Minolta $2,302.17 $0.00000 $0.000 Various per unit Yes Not noted $27,626.04 $0.00 $0.00 $48,602.04

Canon $2,997.98 $0.00450 $0.033 $0.00 Yes currently being
done $35,975.76 $6,183.44 $13,815.15 $55,974.35

SumnerOne Proposal 2 $3,011.66 $0.00595 $0.045 Cost per copy Yes Not noted $36,139.92 $8,175.88 $18,838.85 $63,154.64

SumnerOne Proposal 1 $3,064.69 $0.00595 $0.045 Cost per copy Yes Not noted $36,776.28 $8,175.88 $18,838.85 $63,791.00

** Ricoh $4,385.80 $0.00680 $0.049 Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples Not noted $52,629.60 $9,343.86 $20,513.41 $82,486.87

*** Century Business Technologies $2,886.69 Various after
overage

Various after
overage Various per unit Yes Not Noted $34,640.28 Unknown Unknown Unknown

Current Contract $2,411.34 $0.00450 $0.045 $0.00 Yes Yes $28,936.08 $6,183.44 $18,838.85 $53,958.36

* Konica Minolta's monthly maintenance rate totals $1,748 and comes with unlimited copies
** Ricoh offers a rebate and the first six months of leasing are free
*** Century Business' monthly maintenance rate comes with copy allowances varied by machine

1 of 5



Config Key # of Copiers Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per unit

Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per
Configuration

Group

Click Charge for
B/W (overage if

allowance
program is used)

Click Charge for
Color (overage if

allowance program is
used)

Proposed
Monthly Maint
Fee per Unit

Free Toner
Supplies

Included?  If not,
please indicate

cost

Itemized Billing
by machine and

Dept?

1 3 $81.23 $243.70 $0.003 $0.029 $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

2 2 $73.89 $147.78 $0.003 $0.029 $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

3 6 $79.27 $475.62 $0.003 $0.029 $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

4 6 $71.93 $431.57 $0.003 $0.029 $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

5 2 $10.92 $21.83 $0.003 n/a $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

6 1 $45.00 $45.00 $0.003 n/a $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

7 6 $52.25 $313.47 $0.003 n/a $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

8 3 $52.25 $156.73 $0.003 n/a $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

9 4 $66.35 $265.41 $0.003 n/a $0.00 Yes, Staples =
$79.90 ea

Not noted

$2,101.11

Config Key # of Copiers Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per unit

Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per
Configuration

Group

Click Charge for
B/W (overage if

allowance
program is used)

Click Charge for
Color (overage if

allowance program is
used)

Proposed
Monthly Maint
Fee per Unit

Free Toner
Supplies

Included?  If not,
please indicate

cost

Itemized Billing
by machine and

Dept?

1 3 $105.00 $315.00 $0.0045 $0.035 Not noted Not noted Not noted
2 2 $90.00 $180.00 $0.0045 $0.035 Not noted Not noted Not noted
3 6 $100.00 $600.00 $0.0045 $0.035 Not noted Not noted Not noted
4 6 $85.00 $510.00 $0.0045 $0.035 Not noted Not noted Not noted
5 2 $10.00 $20.00 $0.0045 n/a Not noted Not noted Not noted
6 1 $40.00 $40.00 $0.0045 n/a Not noted Not noted Not noted
7 6 $45.00 $270.00 $0.0045 n/a Not noted Not noted Not noted
8 3 $45.00 $135.00 $0.0045 $0.035 Not noted Not noted Not noted
9 4 $55.00 $220.00 $0.0045 $0.035 Not noted Not noted Not noted

$2,290.00

4 Drawers, Staple Finisher, Fax, Scan
4 Drawers, LCT,Inner Finisher, Fax,

Scan4 Drawers, Inner Finisher, Fax, Scan
Desktop

2 Drawers, PCL, Fax, Scan
2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,

Scan2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers,LCT, Staple Finisher, PCL,

Fax, Scan

Configuration

4 Drawers, LCT,Staple Finisher, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers, Staple Finisher, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Inner Finisher, Fax,
Scan

Configuration

4 Drawers, LCT,Staple Finisher, Fax,
Scan

360 DOCUMENT SOLUTION

IMAGE QUEST

4 Drawers, Inner Finisher, Fax, Scan

Desktop

2 Drawers, PCL, Fax, Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers,LCT, Staple Finisher, PCL,
Fax, Scan

2 of 5



Config Key # of Copiers Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per unit

Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per
Configuration

Group

Click Charge for
B/W (overage if

allowance
program is used)

Click Charge for
Color (overage if

allowance program is
used)

Proposed
Monthly Maint
Fee per Unit

Free Toner
Supplies

Included?  If not,
please indicate

cost

Itemized Billing
by machine and

Dept?

1 3 $85.01 $255.03 $0.00 $0.00 $70.00 Yes Not noted
2 2 $76.12 $152.24 $0.00 $0.00 $70.00 Yes Not noted
3 6 $84.32 $505.92 $0.00 $0.00 $70.00 Yes Not noted
4 6 $75.42 $452.52 $0.00 $0.00 $70.00 Yes Not noted
5 2 $5.91 $11.82 $0.00 $0.00 $55.00 Yes Not noted
6 1 $52.01 $52.01 $0.00 $0.00 $28.00 Yes Not noted
7 6 $60.43 $362.58 $0.00 $0.00 $28.00 Yes Not noted
8 3 $64.19 $192.57 $0.00 $0.00 $36.00 Yes Not noted
9 4 $79.37 $317.48 $0.00 $0.00 $36.00 Yes Not noted

$2,302.17 $1,748.00

Config Key # of Copiers Proposed
Monthly Lease

Fee per
Configuration

Group

Proposed
Monthly Lease

Fee per
Configuration

Group

Click Charge for
B/W (overage if

allowance
program is used)

Click Charge for
Color (overage if

allowance program
is used)

Proposed
Monthly Maint
Fee per Unit

Free Toner
Supplies

Included?  If not,
please indicate

cost

Itemized
Billing by

machine and
Dept?

1 3 $127.17 $381.51 $0.0045 $0.033 $0.00 Yes currently being
done

2 2 $110.36 $220.72 $0.0045 $0.033 $0.00 Yes currently being
done

3 6 $115.16 $690.96 $0.0045 $0.033 $0.00 Yes currently being
done

4 6 $98.35 $590.10 $0.0045 $0.033 $0.00 Yes currently being
done

5 2 $7.57 $15.14 $0.0045 n/a $0.00 Yes currently being
done

6 1 $54.29 $54.29 $0.0045 n/a $0.00 Yes currently being
done

7 6 $63.90 $383.40 $0.0045 n/a $0.00 Yes currently being
done

8 3 $72.50 $217.50 $0.0045 $0.033 $0.00 Yes currently being
done

9 4 $111.09 $444.36 $0.0045 $0.033 $0.00 Yes currently being
done

$2,997.98

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers,LCT, Staple Finisher, PCL,
Fax, Scan

Configuration

4 Drawers, LCT,Staple Finisher, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers, Staple Finisher, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Inner Finisher, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers, Inner Finisher, Fax, Scan

Desktop

2 Drawers, PCL, Fax, Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan

Configuration

4 Drawers, LCT,Staple Finisher, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers, Staple Finisher, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Inner Finisher, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers, Inner Finisher, Fax, Scan

KONICA MINOLTA

Desktop
2 Drawers, PCL, Fax, Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers,LCT, Staple Finisher, PCL,

Fax, Scan

CANON

3 of 5



Config Key # of Copiers Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per unit

Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per
Configuration

Group

Click Charge for
B/W (overage if

allowance
program is used)

Click Charge for
Color (overage if

allowance program is
used)

Proposed
Monthly Maint
Fee per Unit

Free Toner
Supplies

Included?  If not,
please indicate

cost

Itemized Billing
by machine and

Dept?

1 3 $124.56 $373.68 $0.00595 $0.04500 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
2 2 $103.45 $206.90 $0.00595 $0.04500 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
3 6 $110.72 $664.32 $0.00595 $0.04500 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
4 6 $78.17 $469.02 $0.00595 $0.04500 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
5 2 $13.07 $26.14 $0.00595 n/a Cost per copy Yes Not noted
6 1 $64.67 $64.67 $0.00595 n/a Cost per copy Yes Not noted
7 6 $77.39 $464.34 $0.00595 n/a Cost per copy Yes Not noted
8 3 $81.45 $244.35 $0.00595 $0.04500 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
9 4 $124.56 $498.24 $0.00595 $0.04500 Cost per copy Yes Not noted

$3,011.66

Config Key # of Copiers Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per unit

Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per
Configuration

Group

Click Charge for
B/W (overage if

allowance
program is used)

Click Charge for
Color (overage if

allowance program is
used)

Proposed
Monthly Maint
Fee per Unit

Free Toner
Supplies

Included?  If not,
please indicate

cost

Itemized Billing
by machine and

Dept?

1 3 $124.56 $373.68 $0.00595 $0.045 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
2 2 $103.45 $206.90 $0.00595 $0.045 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
3 6 $110.72 $664.32 $0.00595 $0.045 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
4 6 $78.17 $469.02 $0.00595 $0.045 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
5 2 $13.07 $26.14 $0.00595 n/a Cost per copy Yes Not noted
6 1 $64.67 $64.67 $0.00595 n/a Cost per copy Yes Not noted
7 6 $77.39 $464.34 $0.00595 n/a Cost per copy Yes Not noted
8 3 $86.06 $258.18 $0.00595 Cost per copy Yes Not noted
9 4 $134.36 $537.44 $0.00595 Cost per copy Yes Not noted

$3,064.69

2 Drawers, PCL, Fax, Scan

Configuration

SUMNERONE PROPOSAL #2

SUMNERONE PROPOSAL #1

Configuration

4 Drawers, LCT,Staple Finisher, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers, Staple Finisher, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers, Inner Finisher, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Staple Finisher, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers, Staple Finisher, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Inner Finisher, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers, Inner Finisher, Fax, Scan

Desktop

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers,LCT, Staple Finisher, PCL,

Fax, Scan

Desktop
2 Drawers, PCL, Fax, Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan4 Drawers,LCT, Staple Finisher, PCL,

Fax, Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Inner Finisher, Fax,
Scan

4 of 5



RICOH
Config Key # of Copiers Proposed Monthly

Lease Fee per unit
Proposed Monthly

Lease Fee per
Configuration

Group

Click Charge for
B/W (overage if

allowance
program is used)

Click Charge for
Color (overage if

allowance program is
used)

Proposed
Monthly Maint
Fee per Unit

Free Toner
Supplies

Included?  If not,
please indicate

cost

Itemized Billing
by machine and

Dept?

1 3 $173.52 $520.56 $0.0068 $0.049 Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

2 2 $158.56 $317.12 $0.0068 $0.049 Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

3 6 $169.08 $1,014.48 $0.0068 $0.049 Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

4 6 $154.12 $924.72 $0.0068 $0.049 Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

5 2 $54.39 $108.78 $0.0068 n/a Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

6 1 $78.32 $78.32 $0.0068 n/a Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

7 6 $90.39 $542.34 $0.0068 n/a Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

8 3 $108.48 $325.44 $0.0068 n/a Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

9 4 $138.51 $554.04 $0.0068 n/a Usage only Yes, parts, labor,
toner & staples

Not noted

$4,385.80

CENTURY BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES
Config Key # of Copiers Proposed Monthly

Lease Fee per
Configuration

Group

Proposed Monthly
Lease Fee per
Configuration

Group

Click Charge for
B/W (overage if

allowance
program is used)

Click Charge for
Color (overage if

allowance program is
used)

Proposed
Monthly Maint
Fee per Unit

Free Toner
Supplies

Included?  If not,
please indicate

cost

Itemized Billing
by machine and

Dept?

1 3 $115.36 $346.08 0.0079 after 12,000
copies/mo

0.048 after 6,300
copies/mo

397.2 Yes Not Noted

2 2 $103.34 $206.68 0.0079 after 8,000
copies/mo

0.048 after 4,200
copies/mo

264.8 Yes Not Noted

3 6 $115.36 $692.16 0.0079 after 24,000
copies/mo

0.048 after 12,600
copies/mo

794.4 Yes Not Noted

4 6 $103.34 $620.04 0.0079 after 24,000
copies/mo

0.048 after 12,600
copies/mo

794.4 Yes Not Noted

5 2 $14.55 $29.10 0.0079 after 1,000
copies/mo

n/a 7.9 Yes Not Noted

6 1 $48.72 $48.72 0.0079 after 4,000
copies/mo

n/a 31.6 Yes Not Noted

7 6 $54.68 $328.08 0.0079 after 24,000
copies/mo

n/a 189.6 Yes Not Noted

8 3 $77.69 $233.07 0.0079 after 12,000
copies/mo

0.048 94.8 Yes Not Noted

9 4 $95.69 $382.76 0.0079 after 16,000
copies/mo

0.048 126.4 Yes Not Noted

$2,886.69

Desktop

4 Drawers, LCT,Staple Finisher, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers, Staple Finisher, Fax, Scan

2 Drawers, PCL, Fax, Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan

2 Drawers, PCL, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers,LCT, Staple Finisher, PCL,
Fax, Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan

2 Drawers, Inner Finisher, PCL, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Staple Finisher, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Inner Finisher, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers, Inner Finisher, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers,LCT, Staple Finisher, PCL,
Fax, Scan

Configuration

Configuration

4 Drawers, Staple Finisher, Fax, Scan

4 Drawers, LCT,Inner Finisher, Fax,
Scan

4 Drawers, Inner Finisher, Fax, Scan

Desktop

5 of 5



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM 6E



























Revised: 03/10/2021

AGENDA ITEM

AGENDA DATE June 8, 2021

PRESENTED BY Sheriff Darrian Campbell

AGENDA TOPIC Approval of Flock Safety Contract

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC

ALL OPTIONS
1. Authorize the County Administrator to sign the Flock Safety contract
2. Deny the Flock Safety contract

RECOMMENDATION/REQUEST
It is my recommendation that the County Commission approve the Flock Safety proposal and authorize the
County Administrator to sign the contract.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT
The cameras each cost $2,500 per year with an installation fee of $250 per camera.  The first-year total will
be $16,500.  Year two, the cost will be $15,000.  Monies received from diversion fees help offset the overall
cost, though the expenditure will be out of the General Fund.

Flock Safety is a company that offers cameras that will allow for law enforcement personnel to receive alerts and
notifications when specific vehicles or license plates travel in specified areas. Only law enforcement officers are
allowed to log in and receive alerts of stolen, B.O.L.O. (be on the lookout), vehicles and can make actionable
evidence available by a search.

Reno County Sheriff’s Office Policy 424 dictates the purpose which the system is authorized for use and can
only be utilized for official law enforcement business. With the purchase of the technology, training will be
required by each Deputy prior to access of the software.

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #6F



FLOCK GROUP INC.

SERVICES AGREEMENT

ORDER FORM

This Order Form together with the Terms (as defined herein) describe the relationship between Flock Group Inc. (“Flock”) and

the customer identified below (“Customer”) (each of Flock and Customer, a ”Party”). This order form (“Order Form”)

hereby incorporates and includes the “GOVERNMENT AGENCY CUSTOMER AGREEMENT” attached (the “Terms”) which describe

and set forth the general legal terms governing the relationship (collectively, the "Agreement" ). The Terms contain, among

other things, warranty disclaimers, liability limitations and use limitations.

The Agreement will become effective when this Order Form is executed by both Parties (the “Effective Date”).



By executing this Order Form, Customer represents and warrants that it has read and agrees all of the terms and

conditions contained in the Terms attached. The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the dates set forth below.

EXHIBIT A

Statement of Work



Installation of Flock Camera on existing pole or Flock-supplied pole if required

























RENO COUNTY, KANSAS

CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS ATTACHMENT

This Attachment contains mandatory Contract provisions and must be attached to or incorporated in all copies of any contractual
agreement.  If it is attached to the Vendor/Contractor’s standard Contract form, then that Contract form must be altered to contain the
following provision:

“The Provisions found in the Contractual Provisions Attachment, which is attached hereto, are hereby incorporated in this Contract
and made a part thereof.”

The parties agree that the following provisions are hereby incorporated into the Contract to which it is attached and made a part
thereof, said Contract being dated or having an effective date of the ______ day of ______________, 20____.

1. Terms Herein Controlling Provisions:  It is expressly agreed that the terms of each and every provision in this Attachment shall prevail
and control over the terms of any other conflicting provision in any other document relating to and a part of the Contract in which this
Attachment is incorporated.  Any terms that conflict or could be interpreted to conflict with this Attachment are nullified.

2. Kansas Law and Venue: This Contract shall be subject to, governed by, and construed according to the laws of the State of Kansas, and
jurisdiction and venue of any suit in connection with this Contract shall reside only in the District Court of Kansas located in Reno County,
Kansas.

3. Termination Due to Lack of Funding Appropriation:  This Contract is governed by the Kansas Cash-Basis Law (K.S.A. 10-1102 et seq.).
If, in the judgment of the Board of County Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas, sufficient funds are not appropriated or available to
continue the function(s) performed in this agreement and for the payment of charges or fees hereunder, the County may terminate
this agreement at the end of its current fiscal year.  The County agrees to give written notice of termination to Contractor/Vendor at
least 90 days prior to the end of its current fiscal year.  Contractor shall have the right, following the effective date of the notice of
termination, to take possession of any equipment provided to the County under the Contract. The County will pay to the contractor all
regular contractual payments incurred prior to the effective date of the termination, plus contractual charges, if any, incidental to the
return of the equipment.  In the event the Contract transferred title of the equipment to the County, title to any such equipment shall
revert to the contractor as of the effective date of the termination.  The termination of the Contract pursuant to this paragraph shall
not cause any penalty to be charged to the County.

4. Disclaimer of Liability:  No provision of this Contract will be given effect that attempts to require Reno County, Kansas or its agencies
to defend, hold harmless, or indemnify any contractor or third party for any acts or omissions.  The liability of Reno County Kansas is
defined under the Kansas Tort Claims Act (K.S.A. 75-6101 et seq.).

5. Arbitration, Damages, Warranties:  Notwithstanding any language to the contrary, no interpretation of this Contract shall find that the
County or its agencies have agreed to binding arbitration, or the payment of damages or penalties.  Further, Reno County and its
agencies do not agree to pay attorney fees, costs, or late payment charges except as hereinafter provided; and no provision will be
given effect which attempts to exclude, modify, disclaim or otherwise attempt to limit any damages available to Reno County, Kansas
or its agencies, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. To the extent
that either party hereto makes a claim for injunctive relief, the awarding of any such relief shall be based upon the presentation of
evidence to the Kansas District Court showing entitlement to the same.

6. Prompt Payment For Goods and Services; Interest Payment Penalty, Rate:  Reno County agrees to make payment of the full amount
due for goods and services provided by Contractor in accordance with this Contract no later than 30 days following the date of receipt
by the County or its Agency of the goods and services or the date of receipt by the County or its Agency of the invoice or bill therefor,
whichever is later unless other provisions for payment are agreed to in writing by the Contractor/Vendor and the County.  No goods or
services shall be deemed to be received by the County until all such goods or services are completely delivered and finally accepted by
the County.  For purposes of determining whether a payment was made in accordance with this paragraph, a payment by the County



shall be considered made on the date on which the warrant or check for such payment is dated.  The County shall be liable for an
interest penalty for any payment not received by the Contractor/Vendor by the date prescribed herein, the same to be calculated at
the rate of 1.5% per month on the amount of the payment which is due and payable in accordance with this provision.

7. Default; Remedies: The County shall not be considered in default of the Contract for non-payment of fees, nor shall the
Contractor/Vendor be entitled to repossess any equipment or goods provided by Contractor to County for any alleged breach of the
Contract, unless and until the Contractor shall have provided the County with fifteen (15) days written notice of non-payment or default
and of the County’s right to cure such default within said fifteen (15) days.  In the event the County is determined to be in default of
this Contract, Contractor shall be entitled to only such legal and equitable remedies, including injunctive relief, as may be determined
by the Kansas District Court or which such remedies may otherwise be agreed upon by the parties pursuant to a written settlement
agreement.

8. Representative’s Authority to Contract:  By signing this Contract, the representative of the Contractor/Vendor thereby represents that
such person is duly authorized by the Contractor/Vendor to execute this Contract on behalf of the Contractor/Vendor and that the
Contractor/Vendor agrees to be bound by the provisions thereof.

9. Responsibility for Taxes:  Reno County shall not be responsible for, nor indemnify a Contractor for any federal, state or local taxes
which may be imposed or levied upon the subject matter of this Contract.

10. Insurance:  Reno County shall not be required to purchase any insurance against any loss or damage to property or any other subject
matter relating to this Contract, nor shall this Contract require it to establish a “self-insurance” fund to protect against any loss or
damage.

11. Non-Renewal of Lease:  To the extent the Contract is intended to be or can be construed as a lease, it shall not automatically renew
itself beyond the expiration date of its original term, when said expiration date occurs more than two (2) years beyond the date or
effective date of the Contract.  Any such renewal or extension of the original Contract term shall require the written consent of both
the Contractor/Vendor and the County.  At the conclusion of any lease term without renewal, the Contractor/Vendor shall be required
at its expense to retake possession of any equipment or goods provided.  Reno County will not be responsible for payment of any
additional fees or other charges assessed by the Contractor in connection with said termination other than such lease payments and
other associated charges required to be paid by the County for the then current term.

12. Amendment:  This Contract may be amended only by subsequent written agreement between the Parties.

Rev. 12-23-16



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #7A































Revised: 03/10/2021 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

AGENDA DATE 

 

June 8, 2021 

PRESENTED BY 

 

Helen Foster, Human Resources Director  

Reno County Benefits Committee Members 

Audra Gray – Appraiser’s Office, Brian Haberman – Landfill, Deana Mock – District 

Attorney’s Office, Geri Hickman – Health Department, Keaton Berger – Sheriff’s Office, 

Shelly Bredemeier – Youth Services, Harlen Depew – Maintenance Department 

 

AGENDA TOPIC 

 

Benefit Consultant/Broker for Reno County 

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC 

 

ALL OPTIONS 

1. Authorize the County Administrator to sign an agreement with USI per the recommendation below. 

2. Authorize the County Administrator to sign an agreement with IMA. 

3. Deny the recommendation and choose to not have an identified benefits consultant. 

 

RECOMMENDATION/REQUEST  

The Benefits Committee recommends the approval of USI as Reno County’s new benefits consultant, as shown 

in option #1 above. 

 

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT 

The annual cost to have USI as our benefits consultant is $65,000.  Based on information provided by USI and 

from some of their other clients, the savings we will see from USI recommendations will far exceed the annual 

cost.  Both the cost and benefits for a benefits consultant is shown in the Employee Benefits Fund. 

 

In April, Reno County sent out a Request for Qualifications for employee benefit brokerage consulting services.  

The County had recently been in contract with Charlesworth Consulting to assist with some of these services.  

We received proposals from three (3) firms, which consisted of Holmes Murphy (included Charlesworth 

Consulting), IMA and USI.  During the month of May, the Reno County Benefits Committee read through the 

proposals and conducted interviews with each company.  

 

Based on the interviews and follow up discussions by the committee, the recommendation of the Benefits 

Committee is for Reno County to choose USI for the new firm.  USI claims that they will approach cost cuts for 

our insurance plan in a very aggressive manner and will be able to show us results right away.  They are 

personable and cognizant of the culture with Reno County and will work well with our employees.  All questions 

from the committee were approached in a professional manner and with knowledge of the industry, all questions 

had an answer.  We feel that with their knowledge and approach, Reno County would benefit with their expertise 

and resources.  Many of the programs that Reno County would need to implement for success would be provided 

by this company.  USI is passionate about their services and clients which was evident in their presentation. This 

was a hard decision because there were two firms that stood out, but the committee feels that USI would be the 

right fit for Reno County even with the cost of the firm.  In the long run, USI has access to more integrative 

features and bargaining power due to being a national company. 

RFQ and Responses 

https://renogov.org/DocumentCenter/Index/383
shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #7B



Revised: 03/10/2021 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

 

AGENDA DATE 

 

June 8, 2021 

PRESENTED BY 

 

Randy Partington, County Administrator 

AGENDA TOPIC 

 

Discussion on 5-member County Commission 

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC 

 
In 2014/2015, the Reno County Board of Commissioners at that time put together a committee to study the 
proposition of having a 5-member county commission at the upcoming election.  Attached are some survey 
results of the committee.  The commission at that time chose not to move forward with placing the question on 
the ballot. 
 
ALL OPTIONS 

Discussion item to determine later whether to place a ballot measure on the November 2021 election ballot. 

RECOMMENDATION/REQUEST 
Discussion item with no recommendation. 

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT 

The cost of adding two additional commissioners would be $36,000 if the pay for commissioners was left the 
same as the current wage.  There would be other incremental increases in the county commission budget related 
to new board member training, business cards and additional desk space in the commission meeting room.   
 

 

At the last commission meeting, it was requested that a standing agenda item be added for a discussion and to 
have background information regarding a 5-member governing body versus a 3-member body.  The research that 
has been completed since then includes a comparison of various counties in Kansas both of our population size 
and those with more than three-member governing bodies.  The process for taking this ballot measure to the 
voters is mentioned below. 
 
The attached spreadsheet lists the county name, most recent population estimate, size of governing body, pay of 
commission members and the average number of scheduled meetings they have in a routine month.  Pay of 
commission is included for the counties that responded to an email that I sent 2 weeks ago. 
 
The process for taking this potential ballot measure to the voters of Reno County includes the following.    

 Board of Commissioners adopts a Resolution stating the ballot language, no later than August 2, 2021. 

 Publication of said Resolution. 

 The County Clerk’s Office will notify the Kansas Secretary of State’s Office.   

 Educate the public about the ballot question. 

 Ballot measure to be voted by the public on November 2, 2021. 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #7C



County Population Size of Commission Pay of Commission
Meeting Frequency Per Month (Average)

Dickinson 18,466 3 4

Pottawatomie 24,383 3 $30,000 4

McPherson 28,542 3 4

Ellis 28,553 3 3

Ford 33,619 3 2

Harvey 34,429 3 $32,488 4

Cowley 34,908 3 2

Reno 61,998 3 $18,000 2

Douglas 122,259 3 4

Seward 21,428 5 $15,819 2

Franklin 25,544 5 $22,625 6

Barton 25,779 5 $24,500 4

Miami 34,237 5 $32,000 4

Finney 36,467 5 $14,505 2

Saline 54,224 5 $18,699 4

Butler 66,911 5 $32,539 4

Leavenworth 81,758 5 $44,616 4

Sedgwick 516,042 5 $94,737 7

Johnson 602,401 7 $47,349 4

Wyandotte 165,429 10 $17,710 4

Crawford 38,818 3 $31,980 8

Riley 74,232 3 $45,812 8

Shawnee 176,875 3 $53,560 8

Greeley 1,232 5 2

Hodgeman 1,794 5 2

Hamilton 2,539 5 3

Coffey 8,179 5 4

Johnson County Chair is paid $75,000

Shawnee County Chair is paid $58,916

Wyandotte County is joint city/county, commissioners salary may vary based on at-large versus district commissioners

Sedgwick County Commissioners are full-time with offices and staff

Greeley County has board of supervisors that oversee the county operations and City of Tribune

Coffey, Greeley, Hamilton, and Hodgeman are included as commission with 5 members, though they are small counties

Counties in Yellow have an Admnistrator or Manager to run day-to-day operations.



RENO COUNTY 

COUNTY COMMISSIONER SIZE 

 

STUDY COMMITTEE ANALYSIS 

 

For each statement below, place an X under your choice of it being an advantage, disadvantage, or no difference. 

 

  Five Commissioners 

  Adv. Disadv. No Diff. 
     

1. The commissioners’ decision making process 5 1 2 

     

2. Communication to and from citizens 5 1 2 

     

3. Cost of salaries, benefits, and office at present levels     1 7  

     

4. Rural and urban perception of representation 4 2 2 

     

5. Actual rural and urban representation 4 2 2 

     

6. Raising revenue through taxation and fees 2 1 5 

     

7. Developing the County budget 4 1 3 

     

8. Evaluating the results of the County budget 6 1 1 

     

9. Road and bridge planning and response to citizens 4 1 3 

     

10. Developing a County vision and strategic plan 6 1 1 

     

11. Developing County policies with the Administrator 5 1 2 

     

12. The working relationship with the Administrator 4 3 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Add other governing issues or concerns and mark them as advantages or disadvantages: 

 

 Five 

Commissioners 

 Adv. Disadv. 
   

Five commissioners could spread commission workload – i.e. meetings with constituent groups and 

makes the BOCC more visible 

X  

   

Five commissioners and county manager create a professional working relationship with Cty Adm 

managing and BOCC leading a policy-driven organization 

X  

   

Unless BOCC meetings are scheduled in evenings it may be more difficult to find qualified and 

interested people who can meet during the workday.  (More reason for less pay for commissioners 

and changing to a non-workday meeting time) 

 X 

   

With five members there is less likelihood of an individual with an “axe to grind” disrupting the 

flow of business 

X  

   

A five member BOCC would reduce the likelihood of inability to act caused by one or more 

members declaring a conflict of interest related to an issue. 

X  

   

The quorum requirement would be increased and two commissioners could meet to discuss issues X  

   

Result in more / bigger government  X 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 



  

 120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

(620)694-2911         Fax: (620)694-2767 

 

 

 

Monthly Report for May 2021 
Submitted by 

Barbara Lilyhorn 
Director- Department of Aging and Public Transportation 

 

Staff 

•  The Operations Assistant resigned as of June 1 - he is leaving to take a job that pays $20/hr.  

Currently, the position is open to Rcat staff only.  We have 3 good candidates who are Rcat 

drivers.  We hope to fill the position with one of them.   

• Assuming we choose one of our drivers for the Operations Assistant position, we will have 2 

driver positions open. 

Budget 

The Department of Aging and the Department of Public Transportation have spent 30% and 25% 

respectively of the Department budgets – a composite total of 26% of the entire 002 budget as of 5 -

26-21.  Rcat continues to have eligible grant expenditures reimbursed at 100%.  

Bright Spots 

The Department of Aging will once again be the single distribution point for the Kansas Senior Farmers 

Market Program vouchers.  All staff participated in the mandatory training and are now able to assist 

applicants.  Again, this year we will be handling the application and distribution through phone calls 

and the mail. Income eligible Seniors (annual gross household income ≥ 185% of poverty guideline) 

will receive voucher booklets worth $35 for fresh produce, honey and herbs purchased through 

authorized vendors. 

 

All Rcat vehicles returned to full capacity seating on May 24.  The FTA Mandatory mask order will be 

in effect until September 13 unless rescinded. 

 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #8A



















  
120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

620-694-2585 
Fax: 620-694-2767 

 
 
 
 

Automotive 

Budget YTD Summary 

 

As of May 26, 2021, we have used 37% of our overall department budget.  This amounts to $56,795 out 

of the overall budget of $154,752. 

From the Internal Services Fund (motor fuel, parts) we are at 20% or $85,696 out of overall budget of 

$428,000. 

 

Projects/ Issues  

 

No issues to speak of in the Automotive Department with business as usual.  We have been looking at 

vehicle replacement requests and making our recommendations based on condition and mileage. 

We have seen a fuel price increase of 42.6% since the first week of January from an average of $1.81 to 

$2.58 a gallon as of last week. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
RENO COUNTY 

125 West 1st Ave. 
                                                                       Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

                                  (620) 694-2934 
      Donna Patton                                                                  Fax: (620) 694-2534 

      County Clerk                                       TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Clerk/Election Monthly Report for May 

 

We are still getting some filings in for the City/School Elections in August and November. The 

filing deadline is June 1st at noon. We have received several filings, but we haven’t received 

enough filings to have a Primary Election yet. The filings can be viewed on our web page 

under Elections.  

  

In the Clerk’s Office, May was pretty normal, but June will start getting busy. June 1st we will 

be getting our State Assessed values and we will begin the process of getting the Information 

Budget Worksheets sent out to all our taxing entities. The Revenue Neutral Rate (which is a 

levy) will be listed on the worksheets this year and next year we will begin sending out the 

notices to taxpayers if a taxing entity exceeds their RNR. Randy is adding several thousand 

dollars to my postage budget to pay for the cost of mailing out the notices. We should be 

getting reimbursed from the State for the postage the initial two years, but I will still need the 

money in my budget to mail them out. We are in the process of getting proposals for a new 

leased mail machine and folder/inserter. Several in my office have been attending the 

discovery meetings to view new software options in case we move to a new software.  

 

By the end of May, 38% of the year-to-date budget in the Clerk’s Office was used and 32% in 

the Election’s Office with most of that being used for payroll. On last month’s report, I looked 

at the wrong column for the Election’s Office and mistakenly reported last month at 43% and 

it should have been 31%. 

 

Donna Patton 

 

 

 



 

 

Commission Update         May 2021 

 

Staffing 

No staffing issues or openings to report. 

 

Projects / Concerns 

 The move to a new Department of Corrections computer system continues to be a primary 

stressor for staff.  The data migration and significant system problems have been far more than 

expected by KDOC.  Officers are spending a lot of time trying to assist KDOC with information to resolve 

the problems which takes time away from managing their caseloads.   

 Officers will be completing training in June to switch to a new risk and needs assessment.  This 

training will be for the Level of Service/Case Management Inventory, LS/CMI.  Starting in July we will 

move from using the Level of Service Inventory Revised on all adults to using the LS/CMI on males and 

the Women’s Risk Needs Assessment, WRNA, on females.  Men and women often have different needs 

and different paths into the criminal justice system.  Using a different tool for men and women should 

give officers better information so they can be more successful in assisting people in making changes. 

 

Budget 

 The grant budgets continue to be on track as we enter the last month of our fiscal year.  We 

believe the projected grant allocations from January will be inline with the actual allocations from the 

State.  It is likely the final allocation letters will come out in late June.  We don’t get a projected 

allocation for the behavioral health grant so we will have to wait till late June to find out what we will 

receive. 



 
 
 
 
 

Communications Monthly Report- May 2021 
 
Health Department Communications: 

• Press Releases: Mosquito Dunks, World No Tobacco Day, Evening Vaccination Hours, Relaxed Mask 
Guidelines, SNAP farmers Market, Nurses Day Thanks 

• Smoking Cessation Campaign- Grant Funded- media buying for billboards, radio spots (recorded and edited 
youth spot), web banner 

• Photos/videos: PHAB accreditation at Commission meeting 
• Social: World No Tobacco Day, PHAB accreditation, World Preeclampsia Day, vaccines.gov, Community 

Conversations Eventsx4, Reno Recovery 3rd Thursday, Childcare Orientation Class, SNAP at Farmer’s Market, 
vaccination clinics promo, Spanish Video Vaccinations with Dave Sotelo, Saturday Vaccination Clinics, 
National Nurses Day, Maternal Mental Health Awareness Month, KDHE Mobile Lab 

• Flyers: Lincoln School Vaccination event (English and Spanish), Pfizer evening vaccination 12+, public invite to 
Third Thursday Reno Recovery Collaborative 

Website:  
• Daily General updates for all County 
• Fixed all broken links, and updated content to prepare for new website 
• Formed Website Committee, submitted deliverables May 28 (photos, home page buttons) to begin update 

(starting June 1) 
Videos/Photos:  

• Edited proof Drug Court Video 
• Videotaped and Edited Human Resources Spotlight Videos x 2 
• Photo of New Human Resources Director 
• Sheriff and FOP Scholarship Award Photos- Jail and Nickerson High 
• Police Memorial Ceremony- Videos 
• Torch Run and Polar Plunge at Third Thursday- Photos and Videos 
• Reno Recovery Collaborative Third Thursday- photos 

Social Media:    
• Followers/posts:  

o Facebook Reno Co.: 2,618 (+16), 32 posts 
o Facebook EMA: 10,992 (+17), 10 posts 
o Twitter: 767 (+0), 25 tweets  
o Top Post Reno Co. Facebook page: Third Thursday Sheriff’s Events- Torch Run & Polar Plunge 

 4,626 reach, 65 post clicks, 57 link clicks, 22 shares 
o Top Post Emergency Management Facebook page: Severe Thunderstorms 

  4,694 reach, 165 post clicks, 24 shares 
o Top post Reno County Twitter: Weekend Vaccination Clinic 

 255 impressions, 4 engagements 
o Other posts: Human Resources spotlight, new director, Memorial Day closing, road closings, Reno 

Recovery Collaborative, Torch Run, Polar Plunge, Sheriff’s scholarships, job openings,  
Committee meetings: Market Hutch, Website Committee, Visions and Values, ARP Funds/Civic Engagement 
 
Issues: No issues to report 

 
Administration 

206 West First Ave. 
Hutchinson, KS 67501-5245 

620-694-2929 





  

Emergency Management 
 

Reno County 
206 W 1st Ave 
Hutchinson, KS 67501 
620-694-2974 

Staffing changes or issues (if any) 

There are no staffing changes to report.  In my department, I have a full time Emergency Management 
Specialist and due to COVID we have hired a temporary full time administrative assistant.  We continue 
to work hard to maintain daily operations. 

Budget YTD summary 

At the end of May, I have used 35% of my year-to-date budget with most of that coming from payroll.  
We will be replacing some office furniture in early next month, there are not any other large 
expenditures planned. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Emergency Management continues to be very busy.  Not only do we continue the COVID-19 response, 
we have also worked on the Local Emergency Operations Plan, and participated in webinars with the 
National Weather Service to prepare for severe weather.  During the first few weeks of June, we will be 
participating in emergency drills with private industries in the county. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RE:  Monthly report ending May 2021 

 

Dear Randy Partington, County Administrator: 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

We have vacancies in Environmental Health and in Women Infant and Children (WIC) Services; 

we are conducting interviews.       

 

Financial summary 

We are working with the auditors and completing audit requests.  With most of our grants having 

a year end of June 30th, we are working with supervisors on requests and reports.       

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Vaccine Administration.  In looking at our Covid-19 Dashboard, 37.86% of Reno County 

residents have received at least 1 dose of the vaccine.  In looking at the data, we have learned 

that no one who has been vaccinated has ended up in the hospital due to COVID-19. The 

vaccinations are nearly 100% effective at preventing hospitalization at this time. 

Public Invitation from the Reno Recovery Collaborative.  We are experiencing a public health 

crisis in our communities from overdoses and substance misuse.  Therefore, the Collaborative, is 

inviting everyone to take part in events.  The next event is Friday, June 25th at the Fox Theater. 

World No Tobacco Day.  May 31st is World No Tobacco Day. This yearly celebration informs 

the public on the dangers of using tobacco, the business practices of tobacco companies, what 

WHO (the World Health Organization) is doing to fight the tobacco epidemic, and what people 

around the world can do to claim their right to health and healthy living and to protect future 

generations. 

Free Mosquito Dunks Available.  The Reno County Health Department, in collaboration with the 

Kansas Department of Health and Environment, has been trapping mosquitoes in order to 

monitor numbers and ascertain potential threats from mosquito-borne illnesses.  While supplies 

last, there are free larvicide mosquito dunks and directions for proper usage available to all Reno 

County residents at the Reno County Health Department, 209 West 2nd Avenue, and at local 

municipalities. 

 

Upcoming Projects 

Vaccine Administration.  We continue to look toward educational opportunities to discuss the 

benefits of receiving the Covid-19 vaccine rather being susceptible to getting the virus.  We will 

be working with schools, this summer, on vaccine administration.  

   

Sincerely,  

Karla Nichols 

Director of Public Health 

209 West 2nd Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5232 

(620) 694-2900 

Fax (620) 694-2901 

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 800-766-3777 

www.renogov.org/health 

http://www.renogov.org/health


                                                                                               
           RENO COUNTY 
                                                                                       206 West First Ave. 
                              Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 

                                                                          PHONE: (620) 694-2982 
   FAX: (620) 694-2508 

 
 

 
 

Board of Commissioners - Department Update 

Human Resources – May 2021 
Helen Foster – Human Resources Director 

 
 
Staffing 
 
Human Resources will be conducting interviews during the first part of June to fill the HR Generalist position.  At 
this time, we have 2 applicants scheduled for interviews.   
 
 
Personnel Budgets  
 
All spreadsheets for personnel budgets have been updated and sent to the departments for review. At this time, 
personnel budgets are not being entered into New World by Human Resources pending the Wage Study.    
 
 
Compensation Study   
 
Phil has sent over the template for the new Job Descriptions, Performance Evaluation, Self Evaluation and Goals 
for review.  The new Job Descriptions will have our values listed on them and will be rated on the Evaluation. I 
believe this new template will make things easier on the departments going forward.  Phil from TAG will begin the 
completion of converting our data into the new templates with a clean-up of our old job description duties.  The new 
Job Descriptions going forward will be more streamlined and give a general overview of the tasks needed to 
successfully complete each job.    
 
 
Benefits Committee 
 
The Reno County Benefits Committee has been meeting consistently and has been a part of the selection of a new 
broker.  The committee is full of fresh ideas and has been a great asset.  I am looking forward to working with the 
committee going forward for input on improving moral and benefits with minimal cost to Reno County. We have 7 
members.  They are from various departments.  This is a very diverse group that can give insight from many 
different job levels. 
 
 
Health Insurance Quotes 
 
Blue Cross should be contacting us soon about our renewal.  I would anticipate that by the end of the month, we 
will be meeting with Blue Cross to go over the renewal quotes and options for our rates.  I hope that we can be 
onboard with a broker by that time to be the voice for Reno County’s best interests.    
 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

May 28, 2021 

 
           Monthly Report Information Services 

           Michael Mathews 

 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

We were able to fill the Webapp Developer/DBA position with a qualified applicant. He started this month and has been 

catching on to our need quickly. 

Budget YTD summary 

At the end of May, I have used 52% of out adopted budget, we are on track for our year the majority of our large 

support contracts are now paid. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

We have started a number of projects this month, we are currently replacing a large client database used by the 

Department of Aging. We are also reviewing all of our core software(AP AR HR Tax and ROD) We have conducted 2 

discovery sessions with Tyler Technology’s and one all day demonstration with Computer Information Concepts. We are 

planning to have demonstrations with Tyler in the next 2 to 3 weeks.  

Issues that we dealt with the past month include. We had very few issues this month. 

March was a good month with few problems. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RENO COUNTY 
206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2523 

Fax: 620-694-2954 



         

  

 

 

Maintenance & Purchasing Monthly Report 5-2021 

Harlen Depew, Director 

Staffing:  The Maintenance Dept. continues to accept applications for an entry level 1st shift maintenance 

technician, as well as several vacant custodial positions.  We hired one custodian this month, and one custodian 

transferred to the Sheriff’s Dept. to become a Jail Deputy. 

Budget YTD summary 

The Maintenance & Purchasing operating budget is on track for this time of the year. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

The Courthouse Improvement projects are going a little slower than projected, but we’re happy with the quality of 

the work being completed.  Exterior earthquake repairs are beginning at the top of the dome. Window restoration 

and plaster repairs are well under way, and exterior weatherization will proceed in conjunction with the 

completion of the repairs to the dome area. 

The courthouse space is still underway, so we anticipate a report and suggested options to be ready to present to 

the Commission by early summer. 

We received a preliminary recommendation from the engineers for a solution to the HVAC needs at in the EOC, 

which were not addressed during the LEC remodel.  At this time we’re still waiting on some additional electrical 

engineering to complete this piece, and then we will be able to put together a solid budget estimate for getting 

this work completed. 

Maintenance Staff has recently completed interior painting in numerous rooms at the Community Corrections/ 

State Parole/Court Services building, and will be starting some interior painting at the Reno County Correctional 

Facility in the near future. 

In addition to our routine workload, Maintenance employees are anticipating a lot of work tying up loose ends 

related to the courthouse projects over the coming months.  A large portion of this will include interior painting of 

areas not affected by earthquake damage. 

Groundskeeping tasks are back in full swing with all the late May rain and warm weather, so that is taking a 

significant amount of time.  Matt Elliott, Stormy John, and Jennifer Lobban did a nice job cleaning up the landscape 

beds at the Courthouse Annex, and Stormy continues to keep the grounds looking nice at all of our locations. 

 

  



 

Don Brittain 

Public Works Director 

 

Road & Bridge • Planning & Zoning • Noxious Weed • Utilities 

 
                                                                                                   

  

May 2021 Monthly Report 

 

Staff 

 

Public Works is short four (4) full time equipment operators and 94) temporary employees. 

 

YTD Budget Spent 

 

Road & Bridge 19%   

Planning & Zoning 35% 

Noxious Weed 38%    

Highlands Water District #8, 3%  

Yoder Water District #101, 16%      

Cedarview Lodge Sewer District #1, 28%  

Habit Sewer District #202, 18% 

Yoder Sewer District #201, 24% 

Blue Spruce District #3-10, 9% 

Highlands District #8, 26% 

 

Equipment 

All items have been ordered based off the equipment plan and in the process of being built. 

 

Projects 

 

Asphalt Crew is overlaying on 56th Ave. 

Mowing/Sign Crew is mowing throughout the County and replacing signs as needed. 

Dirt Crew is replacing culverts throughout the County. 

Bridge Crew is building a bridge on Smoots Creek Road on the Reno / Kingman Co. line. 

 

Contracted Projects 

 

43rd Avenue Bridge is 70% complete and on schedule. 

Nickerson Road Bridge is 70% complete and on schedule. 

Silver Lake Road Bridge 12 miles east and 1 mile north of Pretty Prairie is 100% complete and road is 

open. 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Works 

600 Scott Boulevard 

South Hutchinson, Kansas 67505 

620-694-2976 

Don Brittain, Director 

 



 

Challenges  

 

Working on how to pay for the rehabilitating Sewer District 201 Yoder and Sewer District 202 Habit.  

 

Working with KDOT on K14 County Special Maintenance Agreement. 

 

Working on solving the Water District 101 Yoder high nitrate problem and how to pay for it.  

 

Waiting to see if COVID money can be used for water and sewer districts rehabilitation.  

 

Concern 

 

Having enough staff to mow ROW and enough temporary help to maintain traffic control for Asphalt Crew 

this summer.  

 

 

 



 Reno County Register of Deeds Office 
Michelle Updegrove, Registrar 

125 W. 1st Avenue, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

Phone: (620) 694-2942  •   Fax: (620) 694-2944  

michelle.updegrove@renogov.org 
 

 
 
 

Register of Deeds Monthly Report for Commission 
May 2021 

Current Business: 
May 2021: 

• Documents Recorded: 1,050 

• Recording Fees Collected: $55,505.00 

• Technology Fund Fees Collected: $12,675.00 

o County Clerk: $2,112.50 

o County Treasurer: $2,112.50 

o Register of Deeds: $8,450.00 

• Heritage Trust Fund (HTF): $4,225 

• Copy Fees Collected: $662.00 

Budgetary 

• Percent of Budget Spent: 40% 
 

Register of Deeds Workload Increase:  

The Register of Deeds Office is receiving a significant increase in document recordings. This in large 

part is due to the recent boom in the real estate market. As mortgage rates decreased to historic 

lows this office received a significant boost in mortgages and mortgage release filings as citizens 

lined up to refinance at significant savings. This year, in addition to increased mortgage filings, we’re 

seeing a significant rise in Deed filings. This could be due to the increased demand in building 

supplies, so instead of building homes at a larger cost, citizens as well has real estate investors have 

taken to buying up homes straight off the market. You could say property is being sold off the market 

almost as fast as its being put on.  

These events on the market front effect our office substantially. Over the last two years majority of 

our monthly document recordings have reached all-time highs.  

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Register of Deeds Workload Increase: (Continued) 

 

 

 

 

(Continue to next page) 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

D
o
cu

m
e
n
ts

 R
e
co

rd
e
d

Monthly Document Count From 2018-2021

2018 2019 2020 2021



 
 
 
 
 
Proposal for Part Time Employee 
Compared to similar sized counties the number of staff operating in the Reno County Register of 

Deeds office is below average.  

 

* Comparison of similar sized counties 

County Population 
Personnel  

(Including the Registrar) 

Average amount of 

 recorded documents  

Riley County 73,343 5 Full Time 900 – 1,200 per month 

Butler County 67,025 4 Full Time, 1 Part Time 800 – 1,000 per month 

Reno County 63,220 3 Full Time 800 – 1,000 per month 

Saline County 55,142 4 Full Time, 2 Part Time 800 – 1,000 per month 

Crawford County 39,164 3 Full Time, 1 Part Time 500 – 700 per month 

Geary County 35,586 4 Full Time 400 – 500 per month 

 

 

I met with Helen in HR to get an idea of a proposed salary which would match the Real Estate 

Associate hourly wage from $11.44 - $12.75 an hour. It would be 19 hours a week maximum. At 

$12.75 an hour, it would gross $12,597 for annual cost.  

 

The ROD office has collected over $500,000 just in Recording Fees alone for the General Fund each 

year over the last two years. If this position were to be paid out of Tech Fund, it would comply with 

the statute since this position falls under “technological services towards preserving, archiving and 

maintaining land records” per K.S.A 25-115a (also see AG Opinion 2010-14). Last year, our office 

collected approximately $95,844 in Tech Funds which would more than cover the cost of a Part Time 

Digital Records Associate. 

 

Randy and I have discussed this proposed job position in length and will seek approval for this 

request in the 2022 budget request. I welcome the opportunity to discuss this proposal with you at 

the Budget Work Session in July, since it would be ideal to have this position covered under the 

General Fund for 2022. If the position were to be covered under the general fund, we could expand 

the job duties to assist with customer service, as the statutes under the Tech Fund would conflict 

with those services. 

 

Please note, because of the need for this person is so crucial to our office, if the position were to be 

approved in the July Budget Work Session, I would request to move forward securing a candidate for 

the position and pay the salary out of the Tech Fund for 2021. 

 

Also, I would like to add that the main goal of getting extra help in this office is not only to make sure 

we are complying with our statutory obligations but also so we can be 100% digital. Meaning all our 

records will be digitized and accessible through annual subscription cost which will bring in more 

money for the general fund each year. Since our days are currently maxed out with trying to keep up 

with document filings, this office will not reach its goal to which we established years ago. I 

encourage you to consider our ambitions and the obligations this office has upon the county as your 

making your decisions for the 2022 Budget Work Session. 

* Verified 5/28/2021. 



 

1 

 

                                                                              
            RENO COUNTY 

  Sheriff:          Darrian Campbell                           Sheriff’s Office 
                                                          Undersheriff:         Shawn McHaley                          206 West First Ave. 
                                                                                                                 Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5298 
                                                                              (620) 694-2735 Office (620) 694-2702 fax 
                                                                           TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777  
 

 

 

 

 May 2021 BOCC Update 06/03/2021 
 

 The Reno County Sheriff’s Office Mission is to ensure the 

highest level of public safety while protecting the rights and dignity 

of those we serve through community partnerships and unbiased 

enforcement of the law. 

 

Staffing changes or issues: 

 The Reno County Sheriff’s Office is staffed at 100 personnel; 84 

full time sworn Deputies, 12 civilian support staff and 4 part-time 

Offender registry personnel. The administration of the Sheriff’s Office 

consists of myself, Undersheriff Shawn McHaley, Captain of the 

Detective Division Steve Lutz, Captain of the Patrol Division Levi 

Blumanhourst, and Captain of the Jail Division Shawn McClay. 

 

 The Sheriff’s Office continues to fill positions as they become 

available. For the month of May we hired 3 new employees which have 

started in the jail. Currently there are three position’s vacant in the jail, 

one moved back home, one took a job with the county which does not 

work shift work, and one took a position commiserate with the education 

he obtained and now works for Horizons. There is one Jail Deputy 

currently on military orders. We are continuing to seek a certified RN to 

work in the jail. We have not had any qualified applicants and will 

continue to advertise the position until the position is filled. 

 



 

2 

 

 The patrol division is currently fully staffed, although; there are two 

currently in the field training program and one deputy currently on 

military orders. 

 We are currently looking internally to fill a position in the Criminal 

Interdiction unit. This is the only vacant position in the Detective 

Division. 

  

Budget YTD summary: 

 The total agency budget is $6,611,844.00. There are two sides of the 

budget, the Jail and what is considered to be the Sheriff side. As of the 

end of May there has been approximately 38 percent of the budget 

expended. This is better than we have done in the past. However, we 

have not been able to purchase our fleet cars we have planned to replace 

this year due to the availability of them. Apparently there is a shortage of 

computer chips for the vehicles and has set everything behind in the 

manufacturing and delivery of the vehicles. 

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns: 

 On the 14th of May, the Reno County Honor Guard and Honor 

Guard from the Hutchinson Police Department held a Law Enforcement 

Memorial ceremony in front of the Law Enforcement Center to honor 

those officers killed in the line of duty protecting their communities. 

 May 21st through the 31st the Reno County Sheriff’s Office 

participated in a state wide program, click it or ticket. During the time 

deputies worked contributing to the program there were a total of 174 

stops made, 169 seatbelt tickets written, 1 illegal transportation of liquor, 

1 standardize field sobriety test was conducted with no arrest (no 

probable cause was found), and 1 drug case.   

  

This concludes my update.  
 

 

Darrian L. Campbell 

Reno County Sheriff 



                           Reno County Solid Waste  
                                                                                 703 S. Mohawk 
                                                                                 Hutchinson, KS 67501 
              (620) 694-2586 
              Fax (620) 694-669-8126 

 

 
 

Solid Waste Monthly Update May 2021 
Prepared by Megan Davidson, Director 

 
Staffing: We have closed our Equipment Operator II position and the new employee will be starting 
soon. We still have one position open but hope to get it filled after interviews and we will be at full staff.    
 
Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns: Conco came onsite the week of May 10th. Construction is going 
well and materials are beginning to come in.  
 
Wyer Concrete Crushing has been at the rock pile crushing concrete and are a little over half way 
complete for the 6,000 tons we are having crushed. 
 
Wet, windy weather has made work somewhat of a challenge for my employees. We are trying to keep 
up on the mowing as well as keeping the blowing trash under control. 
 
Budget: Equipment #356 CAT D8T Dozer is in the shop for an undercarriage replacement from a dry joint 
which includes rails, rollers, idlers, and sprockets. This machine is our main dozer machine that is ran in 
the pit at the landfill on a daily basis 6 days a week 10 hours a day. This repair will be coming out of the 
operating fund of the solid waste budget. The cost to replace the tracks on the dozer will be around 
$71,000.00.  Dozer undercarriages at the landfill typically get replaced around 6,000 hours. This machine 
currently has 5,600 hours and was used hard the past year when the compactor was in the shop getting 
rebuilt from catching on fire in 2020. Normally we have a compactor and a dozer running in the pit and 
this machine pulled double duty when the 826 compactor was in the shop.  
 
The solid waste budget has spent 14% to date.   
 
  

 
 
 

 
 

  



 

www.renogov.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 26, 2021 

 

 

MONTHLY REPORT 
 

 
 

STAFFING CHANGES OR ISSUES:   

 

We have filled one of our positions and will soon hire another.  

 

 

BUDGET YTD SUMMARY: 

 

As of this day, we are running around 40% of our budget in the largest expenses we have 

(payroll).   Contractual services include annual fees for several items, including insurance, 

service contracts for file safe, etc.  I do not foresee a lot of expense for annual items in this area. 

The remaining YTD budget is $169,325.17 with $69,205.83 being spent to date. We continue to 

watch our postage and use email as often as possible.   

 

 

PROJECTS/ISSUES/CHALLENGES/CONCERNS: 

 

My department’s major projects for the month of May was the collection of the 2nd half of Ad 

Valorem taxes and working on the tax distribution.  There is the usual processing titles, renewals 

and refunds of motor vehicle tags.  We are also working accounts that are targeted for the tax 

sale and continue to renew commercial accounts that missed their deadline.  The treasurer’s 

report has been printed per Statue 19-520. 

 

The search for another tag clerk continues and we will be following up on the requisition for 

another employee on the treasury side.  We are having issues with employee openings being hard 

to fill as most applicants were making more than we offer to start or they just do not show up for 

the interview.   

 

 

 

 

 

  

RENO COUNTY TREASURER 
125 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2938 

Fax: 620-694-2776 
T

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Youth Services Monthly Report 

May 2021 

 

Staffing changes or issues (if any) 

The end of this month we completed training for a new standby Youth Care Specialist/Juvenile Correctional 

Officer.  We also have 4 new employees to start training next week.   These new staff will fill both the two full 

time Youth Care Specialist positions and another standby Youth Care Specialist/Juvenile Correctional Officer.   

Unfortunately, we are still in need of a full time cook, and a full-time maintenance technician position.  We 

continue to get limited to no applicants applying for these positions.  Both positions, cook and maintenance, 

are full time positions which offer K-pers and insurance benefits.  This year continues to be a challenge to fill all 

our open positions.       

The employee of the month for May is Paige Chamberlain.  She has been with Youth Services since 

September 2015.  Paige is a Youth Care Specialist in our Youth Shelter. 

Susan Mayes retired this month.  She has worked for Reno County for 33 years.  Susan held many positions 

throughout her career, working both in Youth Services and Community Corrections.  Many Reno County 

juveniles and their families benefited from her dedicated service.  She will be missed. 

Budget YTD Summary 

As of 5/27/2021, we have spent 30% of our Shelter budget (Dept.90).  The expenses are mostly due to 

salaries.  The total shelter budget is $1,051,666.  We have spent 34% of our detention budget (Dept.91).  

Detention expenditures consists of mostly salaries. The total detention budget is $1,054,065.   

Since January, we have had 4 employees retire and have another one set to retire June 27, 2021.   

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

We completed our annual inspection with the Fire Marshal on 5/25/21 and had 0 violations of the Kansas Fire 

Prevention Code.   

Residents have completed school with 5/26/21 being the last day of school.  Some highlights for residents who 

attended public school, one participated in 8th grade promotion, another youth made honor roll, which he 

reported was the first time in his life.  We also had a youth received Most Improved Progress in 2021.  Shelter 

youth will have a week of fun activities before starting their community service schedule.    

Our detention residents have a brief break from school before their summer classes start.  The half day 

classes are run by two USD 308 teachers throughout the month of June.     

RENO COUNTY YOUTH SERVICES 
219 West Second Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas  67501 
(620) 694-2500 

Fax:  (620) 694-2504 
TDD:  Kansas Relay Center  1-800-766-3777 

JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER 

JUVENILE INTAKE & ASSESSMENT 

BOB JOHNSON YOUTH SHELTER 

 



YTD Total Expense Budget Report As of 5/28/2021

Adopted YTD Remaining

Organization  Budget Commitments Transactions Budget % Used

Fund   001 - General Fund

Department   00 - Dept .00 .00 (7,467.50) 7,467.50

Department   01 - County Commission 60,800.00 .00 24,473.04 36,326.96 40%

Department   02 - County Clerk 252,916.00 .00 104,905.08 148,010.92 41%

Department   03 - County Treasurer 238,531.00 .00 75,784.57 162,746.43 32%

Department   04 - District Attorney 1,183,668.00 .00 499,057.10 684,610.90 42%

Department   05 - Register of Deeds 152,497.00 .00 60,313.50 92,183.50 40%

Department   06 - Sheriff 3,283,309.00 .00 1,367,739.01 1,915,569.99 42%

Department   07 - Administration 470,867.00 .00 196,150.40 274,716.60 42%

Department   08 - Unified Courts 597,003.00 .00 213,746.87 383,256.13 36%

Department   09 - Courthouse General 13,514,865.00 .00 1,692,920.89 11,821,944.11 * 13%

Department   11 - Maintenance 906,772.00 5,471.20 285,586.84 615,713.96 31%

Department   12 - Planning Zoning Utilities 79,711.00 .00 27,871.00 51,840.00 35%

Department   13 - Emergency Management 169,350.00 .00 65,395.05 103,954.95 39%

Department   14 - Jail 3,328,535.00 .00 1,166,791.79 2,161,743.21 35%

Department   15 - Human Resources 267,096.00 .00 103,772.40 163,323.60 39%

Department   16 - Appraiser 702,014.00 .00 264,343.21 437,670.79 38%

Department   17 - Election 379,411.00 .00 126,652.77 252,758.23 33%

Department   18 - IS/GIS 683,555.00 .00 375,834.94 307,720.06 55%

Department   24 - Auto Center 154,752.00 .00 62,352.27 92,399.73 40%

Fund   001 - General Fund Totals $26,425,652.00 $5,471.20 $6,706,223.23 $19,713,957.57 ** 25%

*

** Total Percentage of budget used in the General Fund excluding Cash Carryover is 34% instead of 25%

Fund   002 - Dept of Aging

Department   20 - Depart of Aging 539,828.00 .00 168,999.66 370,828.34 31%

Department   27 - Public Transportation 1,730,580.00 .00 517,596.55 1,212,983.45 30%

Fund   002 - Dept of Aging Totals $2,270,408.00 $0.00 $686,596.21 $1,583,811.79 30%

Fund   003 - Health $3,298,244.00 $0.00 $1,271,347.15 $2,026,896.85 39%

Fund   004 - Noxious Weed $129,868.00 $5,336.95 $44,481.66 $80,049.39 34%

Fund   006 - Special Bridge Fund $2,750,000.00 $21,734.50 $4,070.00 $2,724,195.50 0%

Fund   007 - Public Works $6,516,799.00 $31,722.73 $1,215,848.12 $5,269,228.15 19%

Fund   008 - Solid Waste $8,737,830.00 $31,306.99 $1,208,945.78 $7,497,577.23 14%

Fund   009 - YOUTH SHELTER

Department   90 - Youth Shelter 1,051,666.00 .00 344,972.47 706,693.53 33%

Department   91 - Juv Detention 1,054,065.00 .00 385,980.17 668,084.83 37%

Department   92 - Grant Misc. 7,000.00 .00 1,208.17 5,791.83 17%

Fund   009 - YOUTH SHELTER Totals $2,112,731.00 $0.00 $732,160.81 $1,380,570.19 35%

Fund   013 - Solid Waste Reserve $5,800,782.00 $0.00 $46,589.97 $5,754,192.03 1%

Fund   015 - Employee Benefits $11,312,000.00 $0.00 $3,340,520.13 $7,971,479.87 30%

Fund   017 - Training & Evaluation Center $510,000.00 $0.00 $300,000.00 $210,000.00 59%

Fund   018 - Mental Health $452,025.00 $0.00 $262,025.00 $190,000.00 58%

Fund   029 - Special Park & Recreation $10,408.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $4,908.00 53%

Fund   030 - Special Alcohol & Drug $27,386.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $17,386.00 37%

Fund   083 - County Bond & Interest $529,756.00 $0.00 $62,086.00 $467,670.00 12%

Fund   085 - Noxious Weed/Capital Outlay $109,776.00 $0.00 $0.00 $109,776.00 0%

Fund   086 - Health/Capital Outlay $336,041.00 $0.00 $19,477.56 $316,563.44 6%

Fund   087 - Historical Museum $185,000.00 $0.00 $106,000.00 $79,000.00 57%

Fund   093 - Special Equipment Fund $1,005,500.00 $0.00 $220,555.19 $784,944.81 22%

Fund   094 - Special Road Fund $755,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $755,000.00 0%

Fund   097 - County Equipment Reserve $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Fund   098 - Capital Improvement Program $1,062,000.00 $0.00 $6,146.87 $1,055,853.13 1%

Fund   099 - CIP Reserve $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Fund   180 - Internal Services

Department   11 - Maintenance 321,568.00 5,087.00 101,641.51 214,839.49 32%

Department   24 - Auto Center 428,000.00 .00 85,696.36 342,303.64 20%

Fund   180 - Internal Services Totals $749,568.00 $5,087.00 $187,337.87 $557,143.13 25%

Grand Totals $75,086,774.00 $100,659.37 $16,435,911.55 $58,550,203.08 22%

Includes $6,893,800 Cash Carryover.  Percentage of Courthouse General budget used excluding the cash 

carryover is 26% instead of 13%.

 Run by Shonda Arpin on 05/31/2021 01:01:36 PM Page 1 of 1

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #8B



Beginning Fund 

Balance

Revenues Expenditures Ending Balance % Increase / 

Decrease

001 General Fund 14,919,894.47 13,913,258.73 7,666,471.00 21,166,682.20 42%

002 Dept of Aging 763,137.16 802,606.07 706,652.40 859,090.83 13%

003 Health 1,358,836.24 2,162,077.09 1,561,793.78 1,959,119.55 44%

004 Noxious Weed 57,791.63 69,450.60 45,037.73 82,204.50 42%

006 Special Bridge Fund 2,937,495.13 870,574.18 34,793.79 3,773,275.52 28%

007 Public Works 1,456,446.02 5,402,394.22 1,600,264.11 5,258,576.13 261%

008 Solid Waste 5,878,172.12 4,142,833.83 1,317,732.09 8,703,273.86 48%

009 Youth Shelter 674,969.49 578,171.42 743,857.16 509,283.75 -25%

013 Solid Waste Reserve 5,635,294.76 0.00 64,847.74 5,570,447.02 -1%

015 Employee Benefits 4,783,260.34 6,630,042.33 3,428,657.69 7,984,644.98 67%

017 Training & Evaluation Center 25,859.08 470,274.68 313,567.82 182,565.94 606%

018 Mental Health 21,290.55 417,867.98 274,706.29 164,452.24 672%

029 Special Park & Recreation 4,409.37 5,786.80 9,500.00 696.17 -84%

030 Special Alcohol & Drug 17,146.87 6,191.57 10,000.00 13,338.44 -22%

083 County Bond & Interest 142,252.49 347,548.17 64,296.46 425,504.20 199%

085 Noxious Weed/Capital Outlay 89,776.58 0.00 0.00 89,776.58 0%

086 Health/Capital Outlay 378,479.84 0.00 19,477.56 359,002.28 -5%

087 Historical Museum 4,719.53 170,144.04 107,291.38 67,572.19 1332%

093 Special Equipment Fund 684,312.89 199,805.92 222,077.45 662,041.36 -3%

094 Special Road Fund 681,589.21 628,344.97 4,774.28 1,305,159.90 91%

097 County Equipment Reserve Fund 325,000.00 0.00 0.00 325,000.00 0%

098 Capital Improvement Program 482,206.01 582,550.20 16,482.89 1,048,273.32 117%

099 CIP Reserve Fund 1,430,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,430,000.00 0%

180 Internal Services 112,489.42 186,152.74 229,045.87 69,596.29 -38%

Grand Total $42,864,829.20 $37,586,075.54 $18,441,327.49 $62,009,577.25 45%

Fund

Reno County

Fund Activity YTD Summary Report

From Date: 1/1/2021 - To Date: 5/31/2021

 user: Shonda Arpin Pages 1 of 1  Monday, May 31, 2021


	06-08-2021 AGENDA.pdf (p.1-2)
	06B Minutes May 25.pdf (p.3-7)
	06C Health KDHE Amendment-Ltr of Intent.pdf (p.8-10)
	06D Copiers Lease Maint Program.pdf (p.11-16)
	06E Kingman NRP.pdf (p.17-29)
	06F Sheriff Flock Contract.pdf (p.30-46)
	07A EM Fire Districts.pdf (p.47-61)
	07B Benefits Consultant.pdf (p.62)
	07C Commission Comparison.pdf (p.63-66)
	08A Department May Reports.pdf (p.67-95)
	Aging and Transport May Report.pdf (p.1)
	Appraiser May Report.pdf (p.2-9)
	Automotive May Report.pdf (p.10)
	Clerk May Report.pdf (p.11)
	Comm Corr May Report.pdf (p.12)
	Communications May Report.pdf (p.13)
	Dist Atty May Report.pdf (p.14)
	Emergency Mgmt May Report.pdf (p.15)
	Health May Report.pdf (p.16)
	HR May Report.pdf (p.17)
	IT May Report.pdf (p.18)
	Maint May Report.pdf (p.19-20)
	Public Works May Report.pdf (p.21-22)
	Reg Deed May Report.pdf (p.23-24)
	Sheriff May Report.pdf (p.25-26)
	Solid Waste May Report.pdf (p.27)
	Treasurer May Report.pdf (p.28)
	Youth Services May Report.pdf (p.29)

	08B Financial Reports.pdf (p.96-97)

